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READING HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2017 

As management of the Reading Housing Authority (the Authority), we offer readers of the 
Authority's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of 
the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. We encourage readers to consider the 
information presented here in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements, which begin 
on page 1. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of the Authority exceed its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year 
by $1,108,790 (Net Position). 

• The Net Position of the Authority consisted of Net Investment in Capital Assets in the 
amount of$1,096,354; Restricted Net Position in the amount of$37,965 and Umestricted 
Net Position in the amount of $(25,529). 

• Restricted Net Assets in the amount of$37,965 is attributable to HAP Reserves in the 
Housing Choice Voucher Program. 

• The Authority's cash and investments at June 30, 2017 was $617,841 representing an 
increase of$23,014 from June 30, 2016. At June 30, 2017, $37,965 of the cash balance 
is restricted for landlord payments in the Housing Choice Voucher Program. 

• The Authority's net capital outlays for the year were $117,402. 

OVERVIEW OF THE READING HOUSING AUTHORITY 

The Authority is a separately established corporate body organized under Massachusetts General Law. 
The Authority was established to provide safe, decent and sanitary housing to low income persons 
residing in Reading, Massachusetts. The Authority's governing body is a Board of Commissioners. 

The Authority owns and manages 115 residential housing units, four of which are off line as of June I, 
2017, that are leased to low income individuals as defined by the Massachusetts Department of Housing 
and Community Development (DHCD). The Authority administers 125 vouchers under housing 
assistance programs funded by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Under 
this program the Authority subsidizes rents for low income individuals who rent dwelling units in the 
private housing market. 

The Authority is also eligible to receive grants or subsidies from DHCD to fund operating deficits of 
rental units that are owned by the Authority and constructed with Massachusetts grants or loans. 

The Authority currently has a staff of one full-time, two part-time administrative personnel and two full­
time maintenance personnel. 



READING HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2017 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The Authority's financial statements consist of two parts: 1) management discussion and analysis 
which is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority's basic financial statements, and 2) 
the Authority's basic financial statements which are comprised of two components: 1) 
Government-wide financial statements, and 2) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
contains the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as supplementary information in addition 
to the basic financial statements themselves. 

The Authority is considered by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP) to be a special purpose government accounted for as enterprise funds. Its 
charted purpose is the housing of low and moderate income families and elderly individuals. All 
of the activities, programs and grants administered by the Authority are focused for that purpose. 

As a single purpose enterprise fund government, the Authority is permitted to issue combined 
entity level and fund level financial statements. These statements report financial information for 
each of the Authority's funds and a combined total of all funds that represents the Authority wide 
financial position. 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the Authority's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The 
following is a brief description of each financial statement. 

Statement of Net Position 

• The statement of net position is prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and 
provides information relating to all financial and capital resources for the Authority as of 
the reporting date as well as all other related debts and other liabilities. The statement of 
net position is presented in a format where assets minus liabilities equal net position. 
Assets and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as "Current" 
(those which are reasonably expected to be realized in cash or sold or consumed during 
the normal operating cycle of the business), and "Non-current". 

• Net Position (formerly net assets) represent the cumulative effect of revenues and 
expenses. It is also the difference between assets and Ii.abilities. Net Position is reported 
in three broad categories: 

Umestricted Net Position is designed to represent the net available liquid (non-capital) 
assets, net of liabilities, for the entire Authority. 

Net Invested in Capital Assets consists of all Capital Assets, reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 



READING HOUSING AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2017 

Restricted Net Position consist of restricted assets, when constraints are placed on the 
asset by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, etc. 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

• This statement is similar to an Income Statement. This Statement includes operating 
revenues, such as rental income, operating expenses, such as administrative, utilities, and 
maintenance, and depreciation. This statement also includes non-operating revenue and 
expenses, such as grant revenue, investment income and interest expenses and capital 
contributions and operating transfers. 

• The Focus of this Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position is 
the "Change in Net Position", which is similar to Net Income or Loss. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

The statement of cash flows shows the sources and amounts from which the Authority received 
cash such as income from tenants, income from grants, loans etc. and the items and amounts for 
which cash was used such as payments to vendors and contractors, payments to employees, 
repayment of loans etc. The statement is divided into four major sections, operating activities, 
non-capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities and investing activities. 
The statement functions down to the net increase or decrease in the Authority's cash accounts for 
the reporting period. 

The Authority's Funds 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Authority, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to endure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

Business Type Funds - The Authority maintains a business type fund also called enterprise fund. The 
programs supporting this fund are as follows: 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program - HUD provides grants to the Authority to 
subsidize rents paid by low income families and individuals who rent dwelling units from private 
landlords. Under this program qualified applicants are issued vouchers which may be used by 
the applicant to obtain housing in the private rental market. The Authority will subsidize the 
landlord for the difference between the rent requested and the tenant's share of rent not to exceed 
a predetermined payment standard. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2017 

State and Local Programs - The Authority operates the following state and local programs: 

• State Consolidated Housing and State Chapter 705 Housing - Under these programs the 
Authority owns, operates and maintains rental housing acquired with grants from Massachusetts 
Department of Housing & Community Development (DHCD). Dwelling units are leased to low 
income tenants at rates based on their ability to pay. Operations are supported by operating 
income. 

• State Chapter 689 Housing - Under this program the Authority owns operates and maintains 
rental housing acquired with grants from DHCD. The building is generally rented to a non-profit 
corporation who provides health and human resource needs to mentally disabled individuals. 

• State Modernization Program - DHCD provides grant funds to authorities with State 
Consolidated units based on the Authority's application and determination of need. The funds are 
predominantly used to make physical improvements to buildings and dwelling units owned by the 
Authority under the State Consolidated Housing Program. 

• Local Program - Consist of 1 7 family dwelling condominiums owned and operated by the 
Authority. On June 1, 20 I 7, The Authority loss 4 of its units in a fire causing displacement of the 
tenants. As of the preparation and submission of these financial statements, the status of these 
four units are still unknown. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2017 

Authority-Wide Statements 

Statement of Net Position 
FY2017 FY2016 Change 

Assets 
Cash $ 617,841 $ 594,827 $ 23,014 
Receivables 72,657 5,100 67,557 
Other current assets 17,105 31,882 (14,777) 

Total Current Assets 707,603 631,809 75,794 
Total fixed assets net of depreciation 1,412,469 1,412,749 (280) 

Dererred outflows of resources 154,172 124,167 $ 30,005 

Total Assets $2,274,244 $2,168,725 $ 105,519 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities $ 114,666 $ 59,266 $ 55,400 
Non-current liabilities 1,029,353 980,944 48,409 

Total Liabilities 1,144,019 1,040,210 103,809 

Dererred inflows ofresources 21,435 22,665 $ (1,230) 

Net Position 
Investments in capital assets, net of related debt 1,096,354 1,072,588 23,766 
Restricted net position 37,965 16,204 21,761 
Unrestricted net position (25,529) 17,058 (42,587) 

Total Net Position 1,108,790 1,105,850 2,940 
Total Liabilities & Net Position $2,274,244 $2,168,725 $ 105,519 

Narrative of Material Changes on the Statements of Net Assets 

% Change 

4% 
1325% 

-46% 
12% 

0% 

81% 

5% 

93% 
5% 

10% 

106% 

2% 
134% 

-250% 
0% 

5% 

Receivable increase of $67,557 is mainly due to the unpaid capital improvements 
Authority's State Modernization Program as of June 30, 2017. 

m the 

Total Liabilities increase is attributable to the increase of accrued pension (GASB 68) and OPEB 
(GASB 45) for the year June 30, 2017 in the amount of $97,476, an increase of $2,384 in 
accrued compensated absences, and aunual debt service reduction of $24,046, and an increase in 
other current liabilities of$27,995, 

The decrease in Umestricted net position is mainly attributable to the offset of operating reserves 
to fund the accrued pension and OPEB liabilities as outlined in GASB 45 and GASB 68. 



READING HOUSING AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2017 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
FY2017 FY2016 Change 

Revenues 
PHA HUD contributions $ 1,348,853 $ 1,352,935 $ (4,082) 
Net tenant rental revenue 768,174 751,303 16,871 
Other revenue 8,185 6,958 1,227 
Other government grants - DHCD 104,014 54,128 49,886 

Total operating income 2,229,226 2,165,324 63,902 

Operating Expenses 
Housing assistance payments 1,187,888 1,216,531 (28,643) 
Maintenance 341,349 324,512 16,837 
Administration 278,682 330,100 (51,418) 
Utilities 149,518 152,307 (2,789) 
Extraordinary maintenance 8,891 14,952 (6,061) 
Depreciation expense 119,780 86,764 33,016 
Insurance 39,709 41,239 (1,530) 
General 85,023 20,881 64,142 
Tenant services 1,706 1,835 (129) 

Total operating expenses 2,212,546 2,189,121 23,425 

Operating loss 16,680 (23,797) 40,477 

Non-Operating Revenues & (Expenses) 
Interest - 1IDrestricted 372 791 (419) 
Interest expense (14,112) (15,353) 1,241 

Total non-operating revenues & expenses (13,740) (14,562) 822 

Change in net position 2,940 (38,359) 41,299 

Net position, beginning 1,105,850 1,144,209 (38,359) 

Net position, ending $ 1,108,790 $ 1,105,850 $ 2 940 

% Change 

0% 
2% 

18% 
92% 
3% 

-2% 
5% 

-16% 
-2% 

-41% 
38% 
-4% 

307% 
-7% 
1% 

-170% 

-53% 
-8% 
-6% 

-108% 

-3% 

0% 

Narrative of Material Changes on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net 
Assets 

The increase in net position is attributable to revenues of $2,229,598 expenses of $2,226,658 by 
$2,940. 

Housing Assistance Payments - There was a decrease of $28,643 mainly due to a decrease of 
vouchers issued from an average of 121 in FY 2016 to an average of 107 in FY 2017. 

Maintenance Expense - The increase in maintenance expense is due to unexpected maintenance 
issues experienced during the current year necessary to properly maintain the 115 dwelling units. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2017 

Administrative - The decrease in administrative expense is attributable to continued reduction in 
administrative costs dating back to January 2015. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The following factors were considered in preparing the Authority's budget for the 2017 fiscal 
year. 

• Administrative Fee Subsidies for the Housing Choice Voucher Program will continue to 
be funded at 77.5% (variable) of the published rate of$121.48 per unit month leased. 

• State and local inflationary, recessionary and employment trends, which affect resident 
incomes, and therefore the calculated amounts of rental income. 

• Labor and Industries dictates rates based on cun-ent rates in the local construction 
industry, which can affect maintenance wage rates. 

• Costs of utilities, and building materials and supplies will continue to rise. 
• Costs of Employer Health Insurance, Employer Retirement Contributions, Worker's 

Compensation, Fire, Liability, and Property Insurance too will continue to rise. 

Financial Contact 

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances for all those 
with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for 
additional financial information should be addressed to Teresa Ewald, CPA, of Fenton, Ewald & 
Associates, P.C., fee accountants of the Reading Housing Authority, 280 Hillside Avenue, 
Needham, MA 02494, or call (781) 444-6630. 



Board of Commissioners 
Reading Housing Authority 
Reading, Massachusetts 

John H. Ross 
Certified Public Accountant 

397 South Main Street 
Nashua, New Hampshire 03060 

978-337-2846 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Reading Housing Authority, as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Reading Housing Authority's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 
my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating· the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinions. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the Reading Housing Authority, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective 
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

-1-



Other Matters 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated September 7, 
2017, on my consideration of Reading Housing Authority's internal control over financial reporting and 
my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of my audit. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's 
Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basis financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide me with 
evidence sufficient to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Reading Housing Authority's basic financial statements. The accompanying 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required 
by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, as well as the Financial Data Schedule, 
Combining statement of net position, the Combining statement of revenues, expenses and changes in 
net position. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

lf'1� 
John H. Ross 
Nashua, New Hampshire 
September 7, 2017 

-2-
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Reading Housing Authority 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2017 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash: 

Cash - unrestricted 
Cash - restricted 
Cash - tenant security deposits 
Total cash 

Receivables: 
Accounts receivable - other governments 
Accounts receivable - tenants dwelling rents 
Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenants dwelling rents 
Total receivables 

Prepaid expenses 
Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
Building 
Furniture, equipment & machinery 
Constrnction in progress 
Land 
Less - accumulated depreciation 
Property, plant and equipment, net 

Deferred outflows of resources 

Total assets 

See auditor's report and notes to financial statements. 

$ 579,042 
37,965 

834 
617,841 

72,257 
413 
(13) 

72,657 

17,105 
707,603 

4,560,668 
137,963 
103,364 
13,767 

(3,403,293) 
1,412,469 

154,172 

$ 2,274,244 
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Reading Housing Authority 
Statement ofNet Position 

June 30, 2017 

Liabilities and net position 
Current liabilities: 

Accrued compensated absences 
Current portion of long term debt 
Unearned revenue 
Accounts payable - other governments 
Accrued liabilities - wages/payroll taxes 
Accounts payable 
Tenant pet deposits 

Total current liabilities: 

Non-current liabilities: 
Accrued pension and OPEB liabilities 
Long-term debt, net of current portion 
Accrued compensated absences 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources 

Net position 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted net position 
Umestricted net position 

Total net position 

Total liabilities and net position 

See auditor's report and notes to financial statements. 

$ 37,783 
22,800 
20,620 
17,895 
8,621 
6,113 

834 
114,666 

729,925 
293,315 

6,113 
1,029,353 

1,144,019 

21,435 

1,096,354 
37,965 

(25,529) 
1,108,790 

$ 2,274,244 
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Reading Housing Authority 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Net Position 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Operating income: 
HUD/PHA contributions 
Rental income 
Other government grants 
Other income 

Total operating income 

Operating expenses: 
Housing assistance payments 
Maintenance 
Administration 
Utilities 
Depreciation expense 
General 
Insurance 
Extraordinary maintenance 
Tenant services 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Non-operating revenues (expenses): 
Interest - unrestricted 
Interest expense 

Total non-operating revenue - net 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning 

Net position, ending 

See auditor's report and notes to financial statements. 

$ 1 ,348,853 
768,174 
104,014 

8, 1 85 
2,229,226 

1 , 187,888 
341 ,349 
278,682 
149,5 1 8  
1 19,780 
85,023 
39,709 
8,891 
1 ,706 

2,212,546 

16,680 

372 
(14, 1 12) 
(13,740) 

2,940 

1 , 105,850 

$ 1 , 1 08,790 
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Reading Housing Authority 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Operating grants from HUD & other governments 
Receipts from tenants 
Other operating receipts 
Payments to employees 
Payments to vendors 
Payments to landlords 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Interest expense 
Principal note payments 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

$ 

$ 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operations: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Changes in: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Unearned revenue 
Tenant pet deposits 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Accounts receivable 

Cash flows provided by operating activities 

See auditor's report and notes to financial statements. 

$ 

$ 

1,385,206 
784,496 

8,686 
(393,061) 
(417,138) 

(1,187,888) 
180,301 

(14,112) 
(24,046) 

(119,501) 
(157,659) 

372 
372 

23,014 

594,827 

617,841 

16,680 

119,780 

109,907 
17,041 

(322) 
(15,228) 
(67,557) 
180,301 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 

The Reading Housing Authority is authorized by and operates under the provisions of Chapter 121  B of 
the Massachusetts General Laws, as amended, which is known as the Housing and Urban Renewal Law. 
The Reading Housing Authority is governed by a five-member Board of Commissioners as follows: 

Diane Cohen, Chairperson 
Richard Robbins,Vice Chairperson 
Timothy J. Kelley, Treasurer 
Madeline J. Hodgdon, Assistant Treasurer 
Kevin Mulvey, Member 

The Executive Director, Linda Whyte, was responsible for the daily administration of the Authority in 
fiscal year 2017. Reading Housing Authority currently administers the following housing programs: 

Federal Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 
State-Aided Housing Program 400 
State-Aided Special Needs Housing Program 689 
Business Activities 

125 units 
90 units 
8 units 

1 6  units 

GASB statement 14  establishes the criteria for examining the governmental reporting entity and its 
component units that should be included within the reporting entry. Under the provisions of that 
statement, the housing authority is considered a primary government, since it is a special purpose 
government that has a separate governing body, is legally separate and is fiscally independent of other 
state and local government entities. Independent means that the housing authority may, without approval 
of another government entity determine and modify its own budget, levy its own charges and issue 
bonded debt. The Authority is not a component unit of any other entity. 

In determining how to define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential component 
units by applying the criteria set forth in Section 2100 and 2600 of the Codification of Government 
Accounting Standards Board and Financial Accounting Standards Board and Statement Number 14  of 
the Government Accounting Standards Board, Financial Reporting Entity. 

Financial Accountability - The Authority is responsible for its own debts, does not impose a financial 
burden on any other agency and is entitled to all surpluses. No separate agency receives a financial 
benefit nor imposes a financial burden on the Authority. 

Appointment of a Voting Majority - The Authority is governed by a Board of Commissioners Council 
The Board of Commissioners has decision making authority and the power to designate management. 
The Authority's Board elects its own chairperson. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Imposition of Will - The Town has no influence over management, budget, or policies of the Authority. 
The Authority's Board of Commissioners has the responsibility to significantly influence the Authority's 
operations. This includes, but is not limited to, adoption of the budget, personnel management, sole title 
to, and residual interests in all assets (including facilities and properties), signing contracts, issuing 
bonds, and deciding which programs are to be provided. 

On the basis of the application of these criteria, the Authority is a legally separate entity that is fiscally 
independent of other government, and there are no other governments, and there are no other entities 
that are to be reported as component units of the Authority nor for the Authority to be included in the 
Town of Reading's financial reports therefore, the Authority reports independently 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION 

Government-wide and fund financial statements 

The Authority's financial statements are reported in accordance with GASB Statement 34 and GASB 
Statement 63. Under these statements the basic financial statements are to be prepared using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and require the presentation 
of a Statement of Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a 
Statement of Cash Flows. GASB 34 requires the Authority to include Management Discussion and 
Analysis as part of the required supplementary information. GASB 63 requires the Authority to report 
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial 
position and related disclosures. 

The Authority's primary source of non-exchange revenue relates to grants and subsidies. Grants and 
subsidies revenue is recognized at the time eligible program expenditures occur and/or the Authority has 
complied with the grant and subsidy requirements, in accordance with GASB Statement 33. Grants 
received in advance of expenditures are recorded as a liability until earned. 

In accordance with GASB Statement 20, the Authority applies all applicable GASB pronouncements as 
well as FASB Statements and Interpretations, APB Opinions, and ARB's issued on or before November 
30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradicts guidance of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. 

During 2015, the Authority adopted GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. GASB 
68 establishes financial reporting standards for state and local governmental pension plans, defined 
benefit pension plans and defined contribution pension plans that are administered through trusts or 
equivalent arrangements. 

The requirements of GASB 68 apply to the financial statements of all state and local governmental 
employers whose employees ( or volunteers that provide services to state and local governments) are 
provided with pensions through pension plans that are administered through trusts that meet certain 
criteria and to the financial statements of state and local governmental non-employer contributing entities 
that have a legal obligation to make contributions directly to such pension plans. The requirements apply 
whether the government's financial statements are presented in stand-alone financial reports or are 
included in the financial reports of another government. 
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED 

GASB 68 establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, 
and deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined pension plans, GASB 68 
identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount 
projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of 
employer service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about pensions 
are also addressed. 

GASB 68 replaces the requirements of GASB 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local 
Governmental Employers, and GASB 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are 
provided through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain 
criteria. The requirements of GASB 27 and 50 remain applicable for pensions that are not covered by the 
scope of this Statement. See Note 11 for more detail on the implementation and impact of this standard. 

Also during 2015, the Authority adopted GASB 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made 
Subsequent to the Measurement Date - An amendment of GASB 68. GASB 68 requires a state or local 
government employer ( or non-employer contributing entity in a special funding situation) to recognize a 
net pension liability measured as of a date (the measurement date) no earlier than the end of its prior 
fiscal year. If a state or local government employer or non-employer contributing entity makes a 
contribution to a defined benefit pension plan between the measurement date of the reported net pension 
liability and the end of the government's reporting period, GASB 68 requires that the government 
recognize its contribution as a deferred outflow of resources. In addition, GASB 68 requires recognition 
of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for changes in the net pension liability 
of a state or local government employer or non-employer contributing entity that arise from other types of 
events. At transition to GASB 68, if it is not practical for an employer or non-employer contributing 
entity to determine the amounts of all deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions, paragraph 13 7 of GASB 68 required that beginning balances for deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources not be reported. 

CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash 

The Authority's cash is considered to be cash on hand and demand deposits. 

Investments 

The Authority may invest, as directed by policies established by the Authority's board of directors, as 
directed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, in interest-bearing deposit 
accounts, certificates of deposit, U. S. Government obligations, or obligations that are secured by the U. 
S. Government, equity investments, and commercial paper rated AI /PI or higher by Moody's and 
Standard and Poors. 



-10-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

RECEIVABLES 

Accounts receivable from tenants are carried at the original amount billed less an estimate made for 
doubtful accounts based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. Management 
determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts and by using historical 
experience applied to an aging of accounts receivable. Tenant balances are written off with board 
approval when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously written off are 
recorded when received. Allowances for other non tenant receivables are reviewed annually during 
financial statement preparation. 

PREPAID EXPENSES 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

GASB 34 paragraph 102 requires governments to establish a policy that defines operating revenues and 
expenses. The Authority uses the criteria prescribed in GASB 9 paragraph 17 and 18 for cash flows to 
determine operating revenues and expenses. Operating revenue includes rental income, management 
services provided and all other revenue relating to the provision of safe, decent and affordable housing. 

BUDGETS 

Formal budgetary integration is not employed because effective budgetary control is alternatively 
achieved through the award agreements. Accordingly, a statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balance comparing budget and actual amounts is not presented in the accompanying 
financial statements or as required supplementary information. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets which include, property, plant, and equipment are reported in the government-wide 
fmancial statements. The Authority defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of 
more than $500 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at 
estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized 
and projects under construction are reported as construction in progress. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the Authority is depreciated using the straight line method over the 
following useful lives: 

Assets 

Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Furniture & Equipment 
Vehicles 

COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

40 
10-20 

5-7 
5 

The Authority allows employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave at varying rates depending upon 
years of service. Upon termination, all accumulated vacation leave will be paid to the employee. All 
accumulated maximum vacation leave is accrued when incurred in the financial statements. 

Employees are paid by prescribed formula for absence due to sickness and vacation. The amount of 
outstanding accumulated obligation related to such compensated absences is $43,896 at June 30, 2017, 
of which $37,783 is classified as current and $6,113 as long term in the statement of net position. 

INCOME TAXES 

The Authority is a governmental entity, which is subsidized by the federal government. The Authority is 
not subject to federal or state income taxes, nor is it required to file federal and state income tax returns. 

USE OF ESTIMATES 

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, liabilities, 
revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and 
events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, upon settlement, actual results may differ 
from estimated amounts. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

ADJUSTING JOURNAL ENTRIES 

The audited balances in the financial statements include the adjusting journal entries rendered at June 
30, 201 7. 

NOTE 2 - CASH 

At year end, the Authority's carrying amount of deposits was $61 7,841 and the bank balance was 
$671 ,7 1 5. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance or collateral held 
by the Authority's agent or in the Authority's name. The remaining balance was collateralized with 
securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the Authority's name. 

The following table, which represents the types of investments made during the period, but not 
necessarily owned as of the end of the period, presents the carrying amount and fair value of investments 
by type and categorizes the carrying amounts as follows: Category I are those which are insured or 
registered, or held by the Authority or its agent in the Authority's name. Category 2 are those which are 
uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter-party's trust department or agent in the 
Authority's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities 
are held by the counterpart, or by its trust department or agent but no in the Authority's name. 

Reported Fair Value 
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Amount 

Government securities, 
bank CD's and other 
interest-bearing accounts $250,000 $421,7 1 5  $ $671,7 1 5  $671,7 1 5  

Total $250.000 $421,7 1 5  $ $671.7 15 $671.71 5 

NOTE 3 - INTERNAL BALANCES 

This amount results primarily from inter-program transactions. The Authority uses a central account 
known as a revolving account to make vendor payments. All of the individual programs have advanced 
this account a sum of money to establish the account. The individual programs reimburse the revolving 
account monthly in arrears for their share or the expenditures of the revolving account. 

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE/ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - HUD 

There is no Accounts receivable - HUD or Accounts payable - HUD shown in the statement of net 
position as of June 30, 201 7. 
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Cagital assets not being degreciated 
Land $ 1 3,767 $ - $ $ 1 3,767 
Construction in progress 52,467 100,414 (49,517) 103,364 

Total assets not being depreciated 66,234 100,414 (49,517) 1 17,131 

Other Cagital a:,sets 
Buildings 4,492,064 68,604 4,560,668 
Furniture,equipment & machinery 140,062 (2,099) 1 37,963 
Total other capital assets 4,632,126 68,604 (2,099) 4,698,631 

Less accumulated depreciation (3,285,612) ( 1 1 9,780) 2,099 (3,403,293) 

Capital assets,net $ 1 ,412,748 $ 49,238 $ (49,517) $ 1 ,412,469 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $119,780 and was charged to operations, in 
the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 

NOTE 6 - LONG TERM DEBT 

Long term debt consists of the following as of June 30, 2017: 

Mortgage payable, collateralized by a building payable in monthly installments of principal and interest 
of $616 through August, 2027. Interest rate is 4.25%. Balance at June 30, 2016 was $60,988. 

Mortgage payable, collateralized by a building payable in monthly installments of principal and interest 
of$1,043 through May, 2029. Interest rate is 4.25%. Balance at June 30, 2016 was $103,675. 

Mortgage payable, collateralized by a building payable in monthly installments of principal and interest 
of $590 through December, 2031. Interest rate is 4.25%. Balance at June 30, 2016 was $58,754. 

Mortgage payable, collateralized by a building payable in monthly installments of principal and interest 
of$931 through February, 2034. Interest rate is 4.25%. Balance at June 30, 2016 was $92,698. 

Current maturities of long term debt are as follows: 

2018 $ 22,800 
2019 23,400 
2020 24,100 
2021 24,900 
2022 25,800 

Thereafter 195,115 
$ 316,115 
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NOTE 7 NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES - OTHER 

At June 30, 2017, there were the following non-current liabilities reported in the statement of net 
position: 

Accrued pension and OPEB liabilities 

Accrued compensated absences 
Total 

NOTE 8 CONTINGENCIES 

Balance 

at 6/30/16 

$ 632,449 $ 
31,134 

$ 663,583 $ 

Balance 

change at 6/30/17 

97,476 $ 729,925 
(25,021) 6,113 
72,455 $ 736,038 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of the Authority. The amounts, if any, of expenditures which may be 
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Authority expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

NOTE 9 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Authority's revenues were primarily received from federal awards, 
which are subject to availability of funds and the Authority's compliance with federal rules and 
regulations. A substantial portion was also received from tenant rents. 

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Authority carries 
commercial insurance for all such risks of loss, including workers' compensation and employees' health 
and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial 
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

NOTE 1 1  - RETIREMENT PLANS 

Employee Retirement Systems and Plans 

The Reading Housing Authority provides pension benefits for its employees through the Town of 
Reading Retirement System. The Reading Housing Authority's assessment for the fiscal year 
commencing July 1, 2016 was $47,361. The Reading Housing Authority made the required payments. 
The Authority's annual share of the retirement plan contribution is recognized as an expense in the fiscal 
year the contribution is earned. 
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NOTE 11  - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

The Authority provides pension benefits to certain employees through the RRS, a cost-sharing multiple­
employer public employee retirement system regulated by PERAC. The plan is a defined benefit plan. 
Participation is mandatory for all full time employees of the Authority. The retirement plan is a pooled 
risk type of plan. Under this type of plan funding is determined based on all employees covered for all 
employing units. The funding liabilities are shared by each employing unit pro-rata based on the number 
of employees in the employing unit. Since the Authority's share of pension liability is not based on their 
employees, pension expense is determined by the total required payment to be made to the retirement 
plan for the year. The RRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information. 

State law establishes benefit provisions and contribution requirements of the RRS. Employees who have 
at least 10 years of longevity and have attained 55 years of age are eligible to receive retirement 
benefits. Retired employees receive an allowance based upon the average of their three highest 
consecutive salary years of service multiplied by (1) the number of years and full months of creditable 
service at the time of retirement and (2) a percentage based on age at retirement in accordance with a 
schedule provided by state law. Assuming normal retirement at age 65, this percentage is 2.5%, which is 
reduced for individuals who retire prior to age 65 to reflect the longer payout period. Employees may 
elect early retirement after 20 years of service or any time after attaining age 5 5 with 10 years of eligible 
service. Plan members who become permanently and totally disabled may be eligible to receive a 
disability retirement allowance. The amount of benefits to be received depends on several factors, 
including the member's age, compensation, veteran status, years of creditable service, and whether or 
not the disability is work-related. In addition certain death benefits exist for beneficiaries of employees 
who die in active service. 

Depending on their employment date, active Plan members must contribute either 5%, 7%, 8%, or 9% of 
their gross regular compensation. Members hired after December 3 1 , 1 978 must contribute an additional 
2% of regular compensation in excess of $30,000. These deductions earn interest at a rate determined by 
PERAC that vests based upon years of service. Member employers are required to contribute the 
remaining amounts necessary to finance benefits, except for certain cost of living adjustments (COLAs) 
granted before July 1 ,  1 998, which are reimbursed by the Commonwealth. The current and two 
preceding years' apportionment of the anuual pension cost between the employers required the Authority 
to contribute approximately 2% to the total. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Iriflows and Outflows o/Resources 

At June 30, 2017, the Authority reported a liability of $392,082 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 3 1 ,  2016, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority's long­
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. 

At June 30, 2017, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions of $154,172 
and deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions of$21 ,435 .  
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NOTE 1 1  - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED} 

Methods & Assumptions 
Valuation date 
Measurement date 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 

fuvestment rate of return 
Discount rate 
Inflation 
COLA 
Salary increases 
Mortality rates 

1/1/20 1 5  
12/31/2016  
Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
Increasing dollar amount by 4.5% to reduce UAAL to zero 
by 6/30/2029 

7.65% 
7.65% 

3% 
3% of first $12,000 
6% - 4.25% general employees and 7% - 4.75% for public safety 

Based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Tables, with 
adjustments for improvements based on Scale AA. 

NOTE 12 - POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS 

GASB 45 requires governments to disclose the following concerning postretirement benefits other than 
pensions. 

There are three plan types a) medical, b) dental and c) life insurance. The plan administrator is the 
Group Insurance Commission (GIC). Employees can retire at age 55 with I O  years of service. The RHA 
contributes 85% of the medical and life insurance premiums for pre I 0/1/2009 retirees and 80% for post 
I 0/1/2009 retirees. The RHA contributes 0% of dental insurance premiums. There is a surviving spouse 
benefit which the RHA pays 90% of the premium. 

Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation 

Annual required contribution 
Adjustments & interest 
Annual OPEB cost 
Contribution made 
Increase in net OPEB obligation 
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year 
Net OPEB obligation-end of year 

Annual % OPEB cost 
OPEB cost contributed 

6/30/2010 $75,703 51.4 
6/30/2011 75,703 51.4 
6/30/2012 75,703 40.3 
6/30/2013 71,606 44.1 
6/30/2014 70,168 8.7 
6/30/2015 61,996 32.5 
6/30/2016 53,356 29.8 
6/30/2017 56,431 37.1 

7/1/2016 

6/30/2017 

$ 68,134 

$ 

(11,703) 

56,431 

20,927 

35,504 

302,339 
337,843 

Net OPEB 
$36,827 

36,826 

45,209 

40,059 

64,092 

41,845 

37,481 

35,504 
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NOTE 12 - POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

Funded status and funding progess 

Actuarial Actuarial 

valuation value of 

date assets 

7/1/2009 

7/1/2012 

7/1/2015 

Methods and assumptions 

Interest rate 

2017 Medical trend rate 

Ultimate medical trend rate 

0 $ 
0 

0 

Actuarial 

accrued 

liabil ity 

880,342 $ 
730,641 

621,388 

Unfunded 

AAL 

880,342 

730,641 

621,388 

3.5% 

5% 

5% 

Year ultimate medical trend rate reached 2014 

Actuarial cost method Individual Entry Age 

Amortization period 30 

General inflation rate 2. 75% 
Annual payroll increase 3% 

NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

As of June 30, 2017, there were no related party transactions. 

NOTE 1 4 - SUBSEOUENT EVENTS 

Events that occur after the statement of net position date but before the financial statements were 
available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events 
that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of net position date are recognized in 
the accompanying financial statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that 
existed after the statement of net position date require disclosure in the accompanying notes. 
Management evaluated the activity of the Authority through September 7, 2017 (the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued) and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that 
would require recognition in the financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial 
statements. 

CONCLUDED. 
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Reading Housing Authority 

Combining Statement ofNet Position 
June 30,2017 

Annual 
Contributions 

Contract State & 
Section 8 Local State-Aided Revolving 
Voucher Programs Modernization Fund Eliminations Total 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash: 

Cash - unrestricted $ 29,008 $ 571,249 $ $ (21,215) $ $ 579,042 
Cash - restricted 37,965 37,965 
Cash - tenant security deposits 834 834 
Total cash 66,973 572,083 (21,215) 617,841 

Receivables: 
Accounts receivable - other governments 3,554 1,030 67,673 72,257 
Accounts receivable - tenants dwelling rents 413 413 
Allowance for doubtful accounts - tenant dwelling rents (13) (13) 
Total receivables 3,554 1,430 67,673 72,657 

Prepaid expenses 1,716 15,389 17,105 
Interprogram - due from 8,516 34,039 24,618 (67,173) 
Total current assets 80,759 _ _  622,941 67,673 3,403 (67,173) 707,603 

Property, plant and equipment 

Building 4,560,668 4,560,668 
Furniture, equipment & ma,c�inecy - administration 137,963 137,963 
Construction in progresS 103,364 103,364 
Laod 13,767 13,767 
Less - accumulated depreciation (3,403,293) (3,403,293) 
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,309,105 103,364 1,412,469 

Deferred outflows of resources 31,481 122,691 154,172 

Total assets $ 112,240 $ 2,054,737 $ 171,037 $ 3,403 $ (67,173) $ 2,274,244 

See auditor's report and notes to financial statements. 
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Reading Housing Authority 
Combining Statement ofNet Position 

June 30, 2017 

Annual 
Contributions 

Contract State & 
Section 8 Local State-Aided Revolving 
Voucher Programs Modernization Fund Eliminations Total 

Liabilities and net position: 
Current liabilities: 

Accrued compensated abserices $ 2,037 $ 35,746 $ $ $ $ 37,783 
Current portion of long-term debt 22,800 22,800 
Unearned revenue 19,723 897 20,620 
Accounts payable - other governments 17,895 17,895 
Accrued liabilities - wages/payroll taxes 459 4,759 3,403 8,621 
Accounts payable 16 5,597 500 6,113 
Tenant pet deposit 834 834 
Interprogram - due To 67,173 (67,173) 

Total current liabilities 22,235 88,528 67,673 3,403 (67,173) 114,666 

Non-current liabilities: 
Accrued pension and OPEB liabilities 150,849 579,076 729,925 
Long term debt -net of current portion 293,315 293,3 15 
Accrued compensated absences 6,113 6,113 

Total non-current liabilities 156,962 872,391 1,029,353 

Total liabilities 179,197 960,919 67,673 3,403 (67,173) 1,144,019 

Deferred inflows of resources 5,176 16,259 21,435 

Net position 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 992,990 103,364 1,096,354 
Restricted net position 37,965 37,965 
Unrestricted net position (I 10,098) 84,569 (25,529) 
Total net position (72,133) 1,077,559 103,364 1,108,790 

Total liabilities and net position $ 1 12,240 $ 2,054,737 $ 171,037 $ 3,403 $ (67,173) -1......_b274,244 

See auditor's report and notes to financial statements. 
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Reading Housing Authority 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Net Position 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Annual 
Contributions 

Contract State & 
Section 8 Local State-Aided 
Voucher Programs Modernization Total 

Operating income: 
IIlJD/PHA contributions $ 1,348,853 $ $ $ 1 ,348,853 
Rental income 768,174 768,174 
Other government grants 3,600 100,414 104,014 
Other income 8,185 8,185 

Total operating income 1,348,853 779,959 100,414 2,229,226 

Operating expenses: 
Housing assistance payments 1,187,888 1,187,888 
Maintenance 341,349 341,349 
Administration 48,628 230,054 278,682 
Utilities 149,518 149,518 
Depreciation expense 119,780 119,780 
General 75,398 9,625 85,023 
Insurance 3,498 36,211 39,709 
Extraordinary maintenance 8,891 8,891 
Tenant services 1,706 1,706 

Total operating expenses 1 ,315,412 897,134 2,212,546 

Operating income (loss) 33,441 (117,175) 100,414 16,680 

Non-operating revenues (expenses): 
Interest - unrestricted 3 369 372 
Interest expense (14,11 2) (14,112) 

Total non-operating revenues (net) 3 (13,743) (13,740) 

Income (loss) before transfers 33,444 (130,918) 100,414 2,940 

Transfers 

Change in net position 33,444 (130,91 8) 100,414 2,940 

Net position, beginning (105,577) 1,158,960 52,467 1,105,850 

Equity transfers 49,517 ' (49,517) 

Net position ending $ (72,133) $ 1,077,559 $ 103,364 $ 1 ,108,790 

See auditor's report and notes to financial statements. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Reading Housing Authority 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number * 

Agency or 
Pass-through 

Number 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 

Total federal awards 

14.871 MA 075 

* Refer to Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Federal 
Assistance 
Received 

$ 1,348,853 

$ 1,348,853 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the 

federal award activity of the Authority under programs of the federal government for the 

year ended June 30, 2017. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance 

with the requirements of Title 2 

U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the 

Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not 

intended to and does not present the financial position, change in net position, or cash 

flows of the Authority. 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

( 1 )  Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of 

accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in 

Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited 

as to reimbursement. 

(2) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available. 

(3) The Authority has not elected to use the 1 0 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as 

allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

NOTE C - PROGRAM COST 

The amounts presented as federal expenditures represent only the federal portion of the 

actual program costs. Actual program costs, including the Authority's portion, may be more 

than is shown on the schedule. 

Expenditures 

$ 1,348,853 

$ 1,348,853 



John H. Ross 
Certified Public Accountant 

397 South Main Street 
Nashua, New Hampshire 03060 

978-337-2846 
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Report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based 
on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance 

with Government A uditing Standards 

Board of Commissioners 
Reading Housing Authority 
Reading, Massachusetts 

I have audited the financial statements of Reading Housing Authority as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued my report thereon dated 
September 7, 2017. I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Reading Housing Authority's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing my audit, I considered Reading Housing Authority's internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of Reading Housing Authority's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, I do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Reading Housing Authority's internal control over financial 
reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
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My consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. I did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that I consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

PUl.J)ose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Restriction on Use 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the, board of commissioners, 
others within the Authority, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and other federal 
awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

µt/1/' 
John H. Ross 
Nashua, New Hampshire 
September 7, 2017 



John H. Ross 
Certified Public Accountant 

397 South Main Street 
Nashua, New Hampshire 03060 

978-337-2846 
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Report on compliance for each major federal program and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the uniform guidance 

Board of Commissioners 
Reading Housing Authority 
Reading, Massachusetts 

Compliance 
I have audited the compliance of Reading Housing Authority with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
Reading Housing Authority's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its 
major federal programs is the responsibility of Reading Housing Authority's management. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Reading Housing Authority's 
major federal programs based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. 

I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence aboµt Reading Housing Authority's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of Reading Housing 
Authority's compliance. 



-25-

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In my opinion, Reading Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of Reading Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing my audit of compliance, I considered Reading Housing Authority's internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Reading Housing 
Authority's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. I did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

d�,4 a/ "' 
John H. Ross 
Nashua, New Hampshire 
September 7, 201 7  
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Report on compliance with requirements applicable to each state 
program and internal control over compliance 

Board of Commissioners 
Reading Housing Authority 
Reading, Massachusetts 

Compliance 
I have audited the compliance of Reading Housing Authority with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the Single Audit State Compliance Requirements of Housing Authorities, issued by the 
Office of the State Auditor of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, that are applicable to each of its 
state programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. Reading Housing Authority's state programs are 
identified in the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements section of this report. 

Management's Responsibility 
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its 
state programs is the responsibility of Reading Housing Authority's management. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on Reading Housing Authority's compliance based on my 
compliance audit. 

I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the Single Audit State Compliance Requirements of 
Housing Authorities, issued by the Office of the State Auditor of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
Those standards and the State Compliance Requirements require that I plan and perform the compliance 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a state program occurred. 
A compliance audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Reading Housing Authority's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as I considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

I believe that my compliance audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. My compliance audit 
does not provide a legal determination on Reading Housing Authority's compliance with those 
requirements. 
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Opinion 
In my opinion, Reading Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with requirements referred 
to above that are applicable to each of its state programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 
The management of Reading Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable 
to state programs. In planning and performing my compliance audit, I considered Reading Housing 
Authority's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major state program in order to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing my opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Reading Housing Authority's 
internal control over compliance. 

My consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, and therefore, there can be no 
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. I 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I consider to be significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses, as defined above. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. I did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies, as defined above. 

Restricted Use 
The purpose of this report is solely to express my opinion on compliance and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with State Compliance Requirements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. This report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Reading Housing Authority's compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on a state program. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

,� 
John H. Ross 
Nashua, New Hampshire 
September 7, 2017 
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READING HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Schedule of findings and questioned costs 

Year ended June 30, 2017 

Section I -- Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Reportable condition(s) identified 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 
Significant deficiency( s) identified 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Reportable condition( s) identified 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 
Significant deficiency( s) identified 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance? 

Identification of major programs: 

Unmodified 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Unmodified 

No 

CFDA Number(s) 
CFDA No. 14.871 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee: 

$750,000 

Yes 
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READING HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Schedule of findings and questioned costs 

Year ended June 30, 2017 

Section II --Financial Statement Findings 

There were no reportable conditions, material weaknesses of instances of noncompliance related to the 
financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Section III--Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no audit findings required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

Section IV --State Programs Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no audit findings required to be reported 
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READING HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Summary schedule of prior audit findings 

Year ended June 30, 2017 

The prior audit report for the twelve months ended June 30, 2016, contained no findings. 
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READING HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Summary schedule of journal entries 

Year ended June 30, 2017 

The audit report for the twelve months ended June 30, 2017, contains the following adjusting journal 
entries. 

AE# Debit Credit For 
4001 program 

Pension exp 1 $ 1 9,579 FDS & 
Deferred outflows of resources 1 9, 1 14 Books 

Accrued pension and OPES liabilities $ 39,476 
Deferred inflows of resources 783 
To adjust GASS 67&68 

Section 8 program 
Pension exp 2 2,613 FDS & 
Deferred outflows of resources 2,550 Books 

Accrued pension and OPES liabilities 5,268 
Deferred inflows of resources 1 05 
To adjust GASS 67&68 

689 [;!rogram 
Pension exp 3 1 , 322 FDS & 
Deferred outflows of resources 1 ,290 Books 

Accrued pension and OPES liabilities 2,665 
Deferred inflows of resources 53 
To adjust GASS 67&68 

Business Activities 
Pension exp 4 7,223 FDS & 
Deferred outflows of resources 7,051 Books 

Accrued pension and OPES liabilities 14,563 
Deferred inflows of resources 289 
To adjust GASS 67&68 



Reading Housing Authority (MA075) 

Reading, MA 

Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary 

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit Fiscal Year End: 06/30/201 7  
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • ,• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •r• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • T • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •�• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •• 

14.871 Housing 
Choice Vouchers 2 State/Local 

1 1 1  Cash - Unrestricted , $37,524 $541,518 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - �--- --- - - -- - - - - - - - · - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - -- -
112  Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development : 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - � - - - - - · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
1 1 3  Cash - Other Restricted : $37,965 : 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - -- --·----· ·- - ·- - · - - ·----··------------ ·- - · · · · · · · ·- · · · · ··· · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·�· ··· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
114 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits $834 · · · · - · · · · · - - · · - - · - -· - - -· --- · · - - · · - - · · ·· · - · -· ·- - ·- · -· · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · ·J  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  � . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
1 15  Cash . Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities : i ••.......... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ... . . . ... ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  � . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  � . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
100 Total Cash : $75,489 ' $542,352 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- · · · · · · · ·- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- · · · �· · · · - - - - - - - - --- - -· ·�· ·- · · · · · · · · ·- - - - - -' . 

' ' · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •· · ·• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·r· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
121  Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects 
· · · · · · · - · · - · · · - · - - -- · - - - - · - · - ·· · - - · - · - · - - · - - · - - - - - · · · - · - - - · · ·· - - - · - - - · · · · - · · - - �· - - · - - - - - · - · - · · - - · - · - - · - - · - - · - - · · - - - -
122 Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects : 
124 Accounts Receivable - Other Government l $3,554 $68,703 
- · - - - - - · - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - - · - - · - - - · - - · - - - - - · - - - · - · - - · - - - · - - - - - · - - - · - - · · · - - - - - - -- -�-- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - - · - - - - - - - - - - - -
125 Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous 
- · - - - - - - - - - - - - - · · - - - · - -- · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · · - - · - - · - · - - - · · - - - -- - ------ ---- · -----·J·- · · - · - · · - - - - - -- - --�--------· --- ------
126 Accounts Receivable - Tenants . ' 

$413 
126.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants , -$13 
- - - - · - - - - - - - - - - · - - - - · - - - - - - · - · · · - - · - - · - - · - - - - - - - - · - - - - - - - - - - · - · - - - · - - -- - - - - -- -,--· --· - - - - - -- - - - - - ·  - · · - - · · · - · · - - - - - - -
126.2 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other : $0 $0 
- · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · · - - · - - · · · · - - - · - - · - -- · - - - - - - - · - - -· - - - · -- ------- - - -- --· - - - · �-- · - - · - - · - - -------- - - - - -· - - - - - - - - - - - -
127 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current : 
128 Fraud Recovery j 
- · - - - - - - - - - - - -· - · - - · · - - - - - -- - - - · - - · - - - - - - - - - - - · - - · - -· - - - · - - · - - - - - - - - - -- - - · - -· - {--· - - · - - · - - - · - - - - - ·  - · - - - - - - - - - - - -· - - -
128.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud : - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - - - · - - -· - - - · - - · - - · - - · - - · - - · - - · - - · - - · · - - · - - - - - - - - - - - - ·- - - · - - · ·J· · · - · · - - · - - -· - - -- - -�· · - - - · - -· · - - - -- · - -
129 Accrued Interest Receivable ; : - - - - - - -· - -· - - - - - - - -· - - - - - - - · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - - - - - · - - - - - - · - - - · - - - - -- - �-----· - - - - - - - - - · · - ·> - · · - - · · - -- - - - - - - - -
120 Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts ' $3,554 : $69,103 
- - - - - - · -- - - - - -· · - - -· - - - - - - · - - - - - - - - - · - - · - - - - - - · - - - - - - - - · - - - - - - - - -· · · - - · - - - - ---�-· · - - - - -· - - - - - -- - - ·>• · · - - - - - - - - - - - -· - -

' . · · · -· • • • • • • • • · • · - · · · - -· - - --· - -· - -· - -· -· · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -· - - - - -· - - -· - - - · · - · · ·• • · �· · • •· • · • • • · -· · -· - ··r -· - -· · · - · · - • • • • • • •  
131  Investments - Unrestricted 
· · - - - - - -- - - - - - · · - - - ·- -· - - -·- - - - - - - - - · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - - · · · - - - - - - - - - - �- - - -- · - - - - - - - - -- - -·r-· - - - - - - - - - ---·--· 

132 Investments - Restricted : : 
- - - - - - - · - - · - - - · · - - -- - - - · - - - · · - - · - - · - - - - - · - - · - - · - -· - - · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - -- - - · - {-· · - · · - · · - - - · - - ··-·�·· · - - - - - · - - - - - · · - -
135 Investments - Restricted for Payment of Current Liability : : - - - - · - - - - - - - - - - -· - - - - - - · - -· · - - - - - - - - - - -- - - · · · - · - - - - - · - - - - - - - - · - - - - · - - -· - - · - - · -J· - · · - - - - · · - - · - - -· - -� - - · · - - · - - · · - - - - - - -
142 Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets : $1,716 : $15,389 
- · - - · - - -· - - - - - - - - - - -· - - - - - - · · - - · - - · - - · - - · - - · - - - - - · - - - · - -· - - - - - - · - - · - - - · - - · - -- - J-- · - - · - - - - - - · · - - - - -� - - - · - · · - - · - - · - - - - -
143 Inventories : : 
- · - · · - - - - - - - - · - - · - - - · - - · - - - · - - -- - - - - - - - - -- - · · - - - - · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - -- <· · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -· ·> · - - - · - - - - - · - - - - - - -

143.1 Allowance for Obsolete Inventories . . 

. . • -•· - - - - - - · - - - - - - - - · - - · - - - - · - - - · - - · - - - - - · - - - - - - - - · - - - · · -· · •• • •• • • • • - - ·· - - · - - ·· �- - - - - - - - · · · - ·· · ·•• •r•••• - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
144 Inter Program Due From . . - -· · - - - - - - - - - - · - - - - · - - · · - - -- - - - - - - · - - · - - · - - - - - - - - · - - -- - - - - -- - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - -· - -· · -· · - - · - -· - - - - - - · - - - -

Subtotal Total 

·· · ·· · ·· ·· · · · · ·· · ·�· · ·· - - · - ·· ·---- ----, 
$579,042 ; $579,042 ; · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · -�· - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·1 ' ' ' ' 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  , �··- · · ·- · · · · ·- · ·- · · ·l 
$37,965 : $37,965 : 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- ! 
$834 : $834 : · · · · · · · · · ·- · · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- : 

' . ' ' 
$617,841 � $617,841 : 

- · --- - - - - - - - - -- - -- .... -- - - - - - - - - - - - · - - . .  , 
. . 

' ' · · · · · · · · · ·- · · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· 
' ' - · - - - - - - - - - · - - · - - -�- - · - - - - - - - - -· - - · - - -i ' ' 

- -· - - - - -· - - -· - -· .  - :- - -· .  - -· - - - - - - - -· - -$72,257 : $72,257 - - - · - - - - - - · - - - -- - - -:- - - - - - - - - - - · - - · - - · ·  

$413 1 $413 
-$13 : -$13 , 
$0 : $0 ; 

. ' - - -- -·· - -- - - -- - - - · �-- - - -- - - - - -· - - -- - --, 

. ' 
. - -· - .. - - - · - --- -- - :-- - - -- - -- . - - · - -· .  -· 
- - · - - · - - -· - - ·- - - · - {- · - - -- - - · - - - - - · - - - -

- · - - - · - - - · - - · - - - - -�- - - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - - -

- - - - - - - --· - - - - ----�-- - - · - · - - - -· - -- - - -
$72,657 ; $72,657 

' . -----· ·-· · - - - - - · - -�- - -· - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -, 

- · · - - · - - - - - -· - - -- - �- - - - - - - · - - -- - - · - -··l  
. . - - -- - - - - -· - - -- - -· · :- - - - -- - -- - - - - -·- - --l 

- - -- - -· - --- - - - - -· - -:- - - - --- -·· --- - --- --: $17,105 $17,105 

. . -· - - - · - - - - - - · - - - - -�- - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - -- -, 

. . 

. . - - · - - · - -· · - - - · · - - - - - -· - - - · - - -- - · - - - - - - ·  



145 Assets Held for Sale ' ' �· · • • • • • • • • · • · · · · · · ·r 
150 Total Current Assets : $80,759 $626,844 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · ·· · ·· · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · ·· · · · · ·· ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · ·�· ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

161  Land i i $1 3,767 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · ·· · ·· · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · ·�· - · ·· · ·· · · · · · · · · · ·  
162 Buildings : : $4,560,668 
. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  � . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .  . 

. ' 163 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery . Dwellings 

. ' · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·<· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·> · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
164 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery · Administration 

. ' $137,963 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · • · • · • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • · • · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·r · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· • •  

165 Leasehold Improvements : , 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · ······ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · �· · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·r · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

166 Accumulated Depreciation : : ·$3,403,293 
167 Construction in Progress i j $1 03,364 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · ·· · · ·· · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· ·· ·· · · ·· · · · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·� · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
168  Infrastructure 
160 Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 1 $0 f $1,412,469 

. ' . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .• . . . . . . •. • • • • • • • • • •  , • • • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
171 Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current ' ' 
· · - · • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • - · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·r· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

172 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past Due : 

173 Grants Receivable - Non Current ! j 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. . . ... .. ... . ... .. . ... . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  � . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  � . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
1 7  4 Other Assets 

' ' 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  � . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . .  . 
176 Investments in Joint Ventures : ! 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · ·  
180  Total Non-Current Assets : $0 , $1 ,41 2,469 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · ·· · · ·· · ·· ·· · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · ·>· · · · · · · · · · - · · · · · · ·  

. ' ' ' ' ' 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · • • • •• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · • • ·r • · • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  

200 Deferred Outflow of Resources , $31 ,481 : $122,691 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · ········· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·r· · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · ·  

290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources ! $112,240 l $2,1 62,004 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · -:· · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

. ' 
· · · ·· · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · "'· · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · ··� · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · ·-
311  Bank Overdraft ' ' 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · ·· · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · ·· · · ·· · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · ·� · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·> · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
31 2  Accounts Payable <= 90 Days : $16 : $6,097 
. .. . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... .. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . .  , . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . 
313 Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due ' ' ' ' 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · ·�·-· · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · ·· . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . 
321 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable : $459 $8,162 
322 Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion j $2,037 $35,746 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· ·· · · ·- {·· ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  .. . . .. . . . . .. . . . .. . 
324 Accrued Contingency Liability 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ··-:·· · · · ·· · · · · · ·· · · · · · ·· · · ··· ·· · ·- · · · · · ·  
325 Accrued Interest Payable 
331 Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · ·· ·- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- · �· · · · · ·- · · · · · · ·· · ·· ·>·· · - ·· · · ·· · · · · · ·· · 
332 Account Payable . PHA Projects . . 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • · • ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · • · • · • · · · · · • • • · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · � · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·r · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

333 Accounts Payable . Other Government $17,895 
· · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · ··{·· · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · --·r·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

341 Tenant Security Deposits : : $834 
342 Unearned Revenue i $1 9,723 i $897 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  J • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  � • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  

··· ··· · ·· · · ·· · · · · ·�· -· · · · · · · · · ··· ··· ·  
$707,603 : $707,603 

.. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . .  , �· -··· · · ··· · ··· · · · ·  
·· · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ··· 

$1 3,767 : $1 3,767 
$4,560,668 1 $4,560,668 

·· · · ·· · · ·· · · · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
. . · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · ·<· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · ·' 

•• • •• $1 37,963 

• • • •  
1. . ... $137,963 

•• • •• i 
� . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . : 

·$3,403,293 : ·$3,403,293 ' 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  · :- . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... • •: 

$103,364 : $103,364 : 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  �· . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  · ·: 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  , 
$1,412,469 : $1 ,412,469 : 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · <-· · · · · · · - · ·· · · · · · · ·' 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · �-· · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · ·· 

. . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · -.· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·1 

· ·· · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · :· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·) 
· · · · ·· · · · · · · · · ·· · . :· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·: 

. . ' . 

. .. . . . .  . .. . .. . .. . • -'• . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  , ' . 

$1 ,412,469 : $1 ,412,469 , 
· · · · · ·· · ·· · · · · ·· · · <· · · · · · ·· · · · ·· · · · · · ·> 

. . 

· · ·· · ·· · · · · · · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
$154,172 : $154,172 

· ·· · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

$2,274,244 : $2,274,244 
· · · · · ·· · · · · · ·· · · · ·-:· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ····-'· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · ·' ' . 

$6, 1 1 3  1 $6, 1 13 l 
.. . . . . . .. . .. . .. . .. ... .. . .. . .. . . . .  . . . .  . .. : : ' . 

$8,621 ' $8,621 

$37,783 i $37,783 i 
· · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ···:  

. . . . 

· · ·· · ·· · · ·- · · · · · · · -:·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·: 
. . ' . 

' . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ···>  

. . 

$17,895 : $17,895 : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · -l 
$834 : $834 : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  • :• . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... ··l 

$20,620 : $20,620 : · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· ·· · · -'· · · · · · - · · · · · · · · · · · ·' 



343 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue 
. . 

$22,800 
- - - - - • • • • • • • • · · · · · · - · · · - · · · · · - · · · · · · - · • • • • • • • • • • • • • · • · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · - · · ·�· · · · - · · • • • • • • • · · · · ·r· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

344 Current Portion of Long.term Debt . Operating Borrowings : : 
- ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- · · · · · ·- · · ·· · ·· --· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·--· �-· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- · · ·}· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
345 Other Current Liabilities : : 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · - · · · · · · · · · · · ·- · · · · - - · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · 1· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · -- - · �- · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

346 Accrued Liabilities - Other ' . 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · - · · · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · - · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · - · · · · - - J  • • • • .. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  � . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . • •  

347 Inter Program - Due To ' ' 
· · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- · · · · · · · ·- -· · ·· ·· · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· �· · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · - -·� · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
348 Loan Liability - Current 
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · ·-� · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
310 Total Current Liabilities _ _ _ _ ___ _ _ _ _ __ _______ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  J._ _ _ _ _ $22,235 _ _ _ ) __ _ _ _ $92,431 _ _ _ _  _ 

. . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·r· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

351 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue : $293,315 
352 Long- term Debt, Net of Current . Operating Borrowings j j 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  J • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  � • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  

353 Non-current Liabilities . Other : : 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • .• • • • • • • • • •. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • • • • • • • • • • . . . • . . . . .  � . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • •  � . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
354 Accrued Compensated Absences . Non Current : $6, 1 1 3  ' 
· ·- ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- · ·· · · ·- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · -� · -· · · · · -· · · ·· ·· · · ·  
355 Loan Liability . Non Current ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
356 FASB 5 Liabilities 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
357 Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities $1 50,849 $579,076 

350 Total Non-Current Liabilities : $1 56,962 $872,391 
. . . . . . . . . • • • • • • • •• . . •. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • • • • • • • • • • •. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  :· · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 

300 Total Liabilities 1 $179,197 t $964,822 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · ·· · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·� · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · ·· ·� · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

· · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · �· · ·· · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · ·� · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
400 _ Deferred Inflow of Resources _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _______ _ _ _ ___ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  j_ _  ____ $5,1 76 _ _ _ _ _  -L __ _ _ $1 6,259 _ _ _ _  _ 

' . ' . 

$22,800 : $22,800 , . . .  ·-· ·-· . . . . . . . .  ·-:· . . . · · -- . -- . -- . . . ··: 
. . • • •  - • • •  - •• · - - • • • •  , , • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  ·1 

. . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  , 1·· · · · · · · · · · ···-- --·: 

' . 

· · · · · · - - · · · · · - · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ··: 
' . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  � . . . . . . . . . . . • • • • • • • •  , 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · 
$1 14,666 : $114,666 

· · · · · · · · · ·- · · · · · · ·-,.· · · · · · · · · · · · ·- · ·· · ·  

· · · · · ·· · · · · · · · ·· · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  
$293,315 : $293,315 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  :• . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · ·  

$6, 1 1 3  1 $6, 1 13  
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · ·  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ...... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  �· ·  . . .  - - -- ..•..•.  · · ·i 
$729,925 $729,925 

$1 ,029,353 i $1 ,029,353 i . . . .  - . . . . . . . . .  · ·•·  1· ·  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  · ·! 
. ' 

$1 ,144,019 1 $1,144,019 
: 

$21 ,435 , $21 ,435 , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - ...... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  , 
. ' . . . . ' · · · · • • • • • • • • • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · • • • • • • • • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·r· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·1 · · · · · •• · • • • • • • • • · · �· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·j 

508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets : $1,096,354 : $1 ,096,354 $1 ,096,354 ' 
· · · · · · · · · · · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  :·- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
511 .4 Restricted Net Position : $37,965 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  J • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  

512.4 Unrestricted Net Position : -$1 10,098 $84,569 
. . . . . . . . . . . . .• • • • • •. .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • • • • • • • ••• . . . . •. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .  � . .• • • •. . •. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
513 Total Equity - Net Assets / Position : -$72,133 $1 ,1 80,923 
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · ·�· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·� · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  

. ' 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • -,.• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • r • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •  

600 Total Liabilities,_ Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity - Net _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  • __ _ _ _ $1 12,240 _ _ _ _ _  , _ _ _  $2, 1 62,004 __ _  _ 

. . .. . .. . .. . .. - . . . .  ; . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . 
$37,965 : $37,965 

· · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · ·· · �·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·  -$25,529 -$25,529 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  � •. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$1 , 108,790 : $1 , 108,790 
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·· · · · ·�· -· · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · ·  

. . 

$2,274,244 : $2,274,244 : 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . .• • • • •  



Reading Housing Authority (MA075) 

Reading, MA 
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary 

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit Fiscal Year End: 06/30/2017 

14.871 Housing 
2 State/Local Subtotal Total Choice Vouchers 

70300 Net Tenant Rental Revenue $768,174 $768,174 $768,174 

70400 Tenant Revenue · Other 

70500 Tota! Tenant Revenue $0 $768,174 $768,174 $768,174 

70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants $1,348,853 $1,348,853 $1,348,853 

7061 O Capital Grants 

70710 Management Fee 

70720 Asset Management Fee 

70730 Book Keeping Fee 

70740 Front Line SeNice Fee 

70750 Other Fees 

70700 Total Fee Revenue 

70800 Other Government Grants $104,014 $104,014 $104,014 

71100 Investment lncome • Unrestricted $3 $369 $372 $372 

71200 Mortgage lnterest !ncome ! 
71300 Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale 

71310 CostofSale ofAssets 

71400 Fraud Recovery 

71500 OtherRevenue $8,185 $8,185 $8,185 

71600 Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets 

72000 Investment Income - Restricted 

70000 Total Revenue $1,348,856 $880,742 $2,229,598 $2,229,598 

91100 Administrative Salaries $23,958 $97,735 $121,693 $121 ,693 

91200 Auditing Fees $1,250 $7,350 $8,600 $8,600 

91300 Management Fee 

91310 Book-keeping Fee 

91400 Advertising and Marketing 

91500 Employee Benefit contributions -Administrative $16,246 $83,055 $99,301 $99,301 

91600 Office Expenses 

91700 Legal Expense $195 $195 $195 

91800 Travel $1,216 $1,216 $1,216 

91810 Allocated Overhead 

91900 Other $7,174 $40,502 $47,676 $47,676 

91000 Total Operating-Administrative $48,628 $230,053 $278,681 $278,681 

92000 Asset Management Fee 

92100 Tenant Services - Salaries 

92200 Relocation Costs 

92300 Emp!oyee Benefit Contributions -Tenant Services 



j 92400 Tenant Services -Other $1,706 $1,706 $1,706 

92500 Total Tenant Services $0 $1,706 $1,706 $1,706 

93100 Water $49,717 $49,717 i $49,717 

93200 Electricity $91,291 $91,291 $91,291 

93300 Gas ! I $323 $323 $323 

93400 Fuel $8,187 $8,187 $8,187 

93500 Labor 

93600 Sewer 

93700 Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities 

93800 Other Utilities Expense 

93000 Total Utilities $0 $149,518 $149,518 $149,518 

94100 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor $152,255 $152,255 $152,255 

94200 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other $17,449 $17,449 $17,449 

94300 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts $82,918 $82,918 $82,918 

94500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance $88,727 $88,727 $88,727 

94000 Total Maintenance so $341,349 $341,349 $341,349 

95100 Protective Services - Labor 1 
95200 Protective Services - Other Contract Costs 

95300 Protective Services - Other 

95500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services 

95000 Total Protective Services $0 $0 $0 $0 

96110 Property Insurance 

96120 liability Insurance 

96130 Workmen's Compensation 

96140 All Other Insurance $3,498 $36,211 $39,709 $39,709 

96100 Total Insurance Premiums $3,498 S36,211 $39,709 $39,709 

96200 Other General Expenses $75,255 $75,255 $75,255 

96210 ·eompensated Absences $143 $2,241 $2,384 $2,384 

96300 Payments in lieu ofTaxes $7,384 $7,384 $7,384 

96400 Bad debt-Tenant Rents 

96500 Bad debt- Mortgages 

96600 Bad debt- Other 

96800 Severance Expense 

96000 Total Other General Expenses $75,398 $9,625 $85,023 $85,023 

96710 Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds} Payable $14,112 $14,112 $14,112 

96720 Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Tem,) 

96730 Amort!zation of Bond Issue Costs 

96700 Total Interest Expense and Amortlzation cost so $14,112 $14,112 $14,112 

96900 Tota! Operating Expenses $127,524 $782,574 $910,098 $910,098 

97000 Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses $1,221,332 $98,168 $1,319,500 $1,319,500 

97100 Extraordinary Maintenance $8,891 $8,891 $8,891 



97200 Casualty Losses · Non-eapitalized ; 
97300 Housing Assistance Payments $1,187,888 $1,187,888 $1,187,888 

97350 HAP Portability-In 

97 400 Depreciation Expense $119,780 $119,780 $119,780 

97500 Fraud losses 

97600 Capital Outlays • Governmental Funds 

97700 Debt Principal Payment. Governmental Funds 

97800 Dwelling Units Rent Expense 

90000 Total Expenses $1,315,412 $911 ,245 $2,226,657 $2,226,657 

10010 OperatingTransferln 

10020 Operating transfer Out 

10030 Operating Transfers from/to Primary Government 

10040 Operating Transfers from/to Component Unit 

10050 Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Bonds 

10060 Proceeds from Property Sales 

10070 Extraordinary Items, Net Gain/Loss 

10080 Special Items (Net Gain/Loss) 

10091 Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In 

10092 Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out 

10093 Transfers between Program and Project - In 

10094 Transfers between Project and Program. Out 

10100 Total Other financing Sources (Uses) $0 $0 $0 $0 
1 

10000 Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses $33,444 -$30,503 $2,941 $2,941 

11020 Required Annual Debt Principal Payments $0 $0 $0 $0 
11030 Beginning Equity ·$105,577 $1,211,426 $1,105,849 $1,105,849 

11040 Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors 

11050 Changes in Compensated Absence Balance 

1 1060 Changes In Contingent liability Balance 

11070 Changes in Unrecognized Pension Transition liability 

11080 Changes in Special Term/Severance Benefits liability 

11090 Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts . Dwelling Rents 

11100 Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Other 

11170 Administrative Fee Equity -$110,098 -$110,098 ...$110,098 

11180 Housing Assistance Payments Equity $37,965 $37,965 $37,965 

11190 Unit Months Available 1500 1380 2880 2880 

11210 Number of Unit Months Leased 1284 1369 2653 2653 

11270 ExcessCash 

11610 Land Purchases 

11620 Building Purchases 

11630 Furniture & Equipment- Dwelling Purchases 1 
11640 Furniture & Equipment-Administrative Purchases 

11650 Leasehold Improvements Purchases 

11660 Infrastructure Purchases 

13510 CFFP Debt Service Payments 

13901 Replacement Housing Factor Funds 


